IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

AUG 28 1985

WILLIAM	LANAY	HARVARD,
---------	-------	----------

Appellant,

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

By____Chief Deputy Cont

CASE NO. 67556

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

On Appeal from the Circuit Court of the 18th Judicial Circuit of Florida,
In and For Brevard County

RICHARD L. JORANDBY
Public Defender
15th Judicial Circuit
224 Datura Street/13th Floor
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
(305) 837-2150

CRAIG S. BARNARD Chief Assistant Public Defender

RICHARD H. BURR, III Assistant Public Defender

MICHAEL A. MELLO Assistant Public Defender

Counsel for Appellant.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

- 1. The sentencing judge explicitly found, at the hearing on August 26, 1985, that at the time of Mr. Harvard's trial, he believed that his consideration of mitigating factors was strictly limited to those enumerated in the statute. sentencing judge further found that he "certainly carried out [his] responsibilities on the basis of that premise at the time of Mr. Harvard's trial." This restricted consideration of mitigating factors violated this Court's mandate in Jacobs v. State, 396 So.2d 713 (Fla. 1981) and Perry v. State, 395 So.2d 170 (Fla. 1981), holding that such a "mistaken belief [by a judge] that he could not consider nonstatutory mitigating circumstances," Jacobs, 396 So.2d at 713, would violate Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978), by precluding an individualized capital sentencing determination as required by the eighth and fourteenth amendments. The lower court's refusal nevertheless to grant relief was based on its view that Lockett should not be given retroactive effect. Such a holding overlooks the fundamental nature of the violation and the consistent retroactive application of Lockett by this Court and the United States Supreme Court.
- 2. The capital sentencing statute was applied unconstitutionally in Mr. Harvard's sentencing trial due to what this Court has recently termed a "misunderstanding of law ... on the part of trial counsel [and] the trial judge," <u>Francois v. State</u>, 470 So.2d 687, 689 (Fla. 1985). At the time of his trial, June,

1974, trial counsel and the trial judge reasonably but "unintentionally misinterpret[ed]," Armstrong v. State, 429 So.2d 287, 293 (Fla. 1983) (McDonald, J., joined by Ehrlich, J., dissenting), the statute as precluding the presentation and consideration of mitigating evidence unrelated to the seven statutory mitigating factors. Accordingly, counsel failed to investigate and present any of the powerful available independent evidence of nonstatutory mitigating circumstances: Mr. Harvard's background, early life, good character, positive and loving relationships with family members and other people, positive values and attitudes, productive and reliable work record, and potential for rehabilitation. Similarly, as already noted, the trial judge failed to consider the mitigating features that inhered in the guilt phase evidence but which did not fall within the confines of the statutory mitigating circumstances. See point 1, supra. Further, the trial judge's misunderstanding of law was communicated through instructions to the jury, precluding as well the jury's consideration of these mitigating features. Because of the misunderstanding of law by trial counsel and the trial judge, therefore, Mr. Harvard was denied a fully individualized sentencing procedure, in violation of the eighth amendment principles of Lockett v. Ohio, 438 U.S. 586 (1978).

3. Mr. Harvard has stated valid and substantial claims for relief due to the denial of effective assistance of counsel in his sentencing proceeding. In his Motion to Vacate, Mr. Harvard has shown in detail that each of the four defects in counsel's

performance -- his failure to investigate and prepare to defend against a prior conviction which was the critical aggravating circumstance, his failure to obtain an appropriate evaluation of Mr. Harvard's capacity at the time of the offense despite the willingness of the court to order such an evaluation, his own closing argument which diminished the jury's sense of responsibility for its advisory verdict, and his failure to object to prosecutorial argument which invited a death sentence to avoid the possibility of early parole through future legislative action -- was non-strategic and unreasonable. Further, he has shown that each of these defects was so prejudicial as to "undermine confidence in the outcome, "Strickland v. Washington, U.S. , 104 S.Ct. 2052, 2068 (1984), of his sentencing procedure. Neither on the face of the Motion to Vacate, nor upon inspection of the files and records in the case, could the Circuit Court have conclusively found that the facts underlying these claims were not true. Accordingly, the Circuit Court committed reversible error when it held that Mr. Harvard's claims of ineffective assistance of counsel were legally insufficient and thus did not require an evidentiary hearing. See Meeks v. State, 382 So.2d 673, 676 (Fla. 1980). See also O'Callaghan v. State, So.2d , 9 Fla. L. W. 525 (Fla. December 13, 1984); Le Duc v. State, 415 So.2d 721 (Fla. 1982).

4. The penalty phase instructions violated the eighth amendment in four respects. First, they failed to inform the jury that the State bears the burden of proving aggravating circumstances beyond a reasonable doubt and of proving that death

is the appropriate penalty. Second, the instructions impermissibly allocated to Mr. Harvard the burden of proof. Third, the instructions failed to inform the jury that even after weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances, it still was required to determine whether death was the appropriate penalty in this case. Fourth, the instructions failed to inform the jury about the role played by mitigating circumstances in Florida's capital sentencing scheme. These errors constitute fundamental error and are therefore cognizable in these collateral review proceedings.

5. The capital sentencing statute is being unconstitutionally applied in two additional respects. Condemned people are being executed by means of electrocution which, in light of the evolving standards of decency in the past decade, now amounts to cruel and unusual punishment. People are being condemned arbitrarily and discriminatorily -- on the basis of factors, such as race, which are barred from consideration in the sentencing process.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

William Harvard was convicted of first degree murder and sentenced to death for the killing of his ex-wife, Ann Bovard. This Court affirmed Mr. Harvard's conviction and sentence. Harvard v. State, 375 So.2d 833 (Fla. 1978). Justice Boyd and Justice Hatchett dissented as to the propriety of the death sentence. Id. A timely petition for rehearing and an application for relief pursuant to Gardner were filed. On November 2, 1978 the Court issued an Order denying rehearing and vacating the death sentence pursuant to Gardner v. Florida, 430 U.S. 349 (1977). 375 So.2d at 835. This Court's mandate was issued on December 5, 1978. Certiorari was denied on May 14, 1979. Harvard v. Florida, 441 U.S. 956 (1979).

The resentencing hearing was held on February 9, 1979. R 68-159. The trial judge resentenced Mr. Harvard to death on August 22, 1979, without filing findings of fact. R 1-37. On May 16, 1980 the trial judge issued his findings of fact, R 38-46, after having previously sent proposed findings of fact to both parties. SR 7-15.

Mr. Harvard's death sentence was affirmed by this Court on April 5, 1982 and rehearing was denied on June 27, 1982. Harvard

In referring to the trial record, Appellant will use the following abbreviations:

[&]quot;OR" Original Record on Appeal

[&]quot;OT" Original Transcript (6 volumes)

[&]quot;OP" Original Penalty Phase Transcript

[&]quot;OS" Original Sentencing Transcript

[&]quot;R" Record on Appeal, Gardner remand

[&]quot;SR" Supplemental Record on Appeal

[&]quot;PSR" Supplemental Record on Appeal dealing with Pyschiatric Exhibit

v. State, 414 So.2d 1032 (Fla. 1982), cert. denied, 459 U.S. 1128 (1983), reh. denied, 460 U.S. 1017 (1983).

On January 19, 1984 arguments were heard before the Board of Executive Clemency. On August 8, 1985 the Governor of Florida signed a death warrant requiring Mr. Harvard to be executed between noon on Thursday, August 29, 1985 and noon on Thursday, September 5, 1985. Mr. Harvard's execution is presently scheduled for September 4, 1985, at 7:00 a.m.

On Thursday, August 22, 1985, Mr. Harvard filed the present motion for post-conviction relief pursuant to Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850, together with a supporting Appendix and an Application for Stay of Execution. The following grounds for relief were presented by Mr. Harvard's Motion to Vacate Death Sentence:

Mr. Harvard was denied an individualized and accurate capital sentencing determination due to the unconstitutional application of the Florida capital sentencing statute which was reasonably interpreted at the time of Mr. Harvard's trial, in June, 1974, to restrict consideration of mitigating circumstances to only those circumstances narrowly set out in §921.141(6) with the result that significant, relevant mitigating features of the case were not investigated, presented or considered in the determination of whether Mr. Harvard should be sentenced to die, in violation of the sixth, eighth and fourteenth amendments.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 16, at 12.

The penalty phase jury instructions in this case denied Mr. Harvard due process of law by failing to inform the jury that the State bears the burden of proving the existence of aggravating circumstances beyond a reasonable doubt, and of proving that death is the appropriate punishment.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 17, at 39.

The penalty phase jury instructions, by stating that if the jury found the existence of an aggravating circumstance it was then to determine "whether sufficient mitigating circumstances exist ... which outweigh the aggravating circumstances," OT 957, impermissibly

allocated the constitutionally prescribed burden of of proof. Arango v. State, 411 So.2d at 174.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 18, at 43.

The penalty phase instructions in this case denied Mr. Harvard due process of law by failing to inform the jury that even after weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances it still was required to determine whether death was the appropriate penalty in the case before it.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 19, at 46.

The penalty phase jury instructions in this case denied Mr. Harvard due process of law by failing to inform the jury about the role played by mitigating circumstances in Florida's capital punishment scheme.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 20, at 49.

Mr. Harvard was denied a fair sentencing proceeding, in violation of sixth, eighth, and fourteenth amendment safeguards, because he was unprepared and unable to meet the evidence tendered in support of the aggravating circumstance concerning his prior conviction of a felony involving the use of violence. This deprivation was the result of two factors: the trial court's unprecedented application of Florida's then-new capital sentencing statute to allow introduction of the facts underlying the prior conviction, in addition to the judgment of conviction, in the sentencing proceeding; and the ineffectiveness of Mr. Harvard's trial counsel in meeting those facts due to lack of investigation and preparation before trial, coupled with the failure to move for a continuance during trial once those facts had been admitted.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 21, at 51.

Mr. Harvard was deprived of his right to effective assistance of counsel at his sentencing proceeding as a result of counsel's failure to obtain an appropriate psychiatric evaluation, or to object to the court's failure to order an appropriate psychiatric evaluation.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 22, at 71.

Mr. Harvard was deprived of the effective assistance of counsel at his sentencing proceeding herein as the result of counsel's closing argument to the jury, which affirmatively harmed Mr. Harvard by diminishing the jury's sense of responsibility for determining the appropriateness of Mr. Harvard's sentence.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 23, at 75.

Mr. Harvard was denied an individualized and accurate capital sentencing determination, in violation of eighth and fourteenth amendment safeguards, by the prosecutor's plea to the jury to sentence Mr. Harvard to death in order to avoid the possibility that the legislature might change the mandatory period of imprisonment required before Mr. Harvard could be eligible for parole under a life sentence, from what was then twenty-five years to as little as six months. In the alternative, and only if the court determines that this error cannot be treated as fundamental error, Mr. Harvard was deprived of the effective assistance of counsel at the sentencing proceeding by virtue of counsel's failure to object to this argument by the prosecutor and to request a new sentencing proceeding in light thereof.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 24, at 78.

The death penalty in Florida has been imposed in an arbitrary, discriminatory manner -- on the basis of factors which are barred from consideration in the capital sentence determination process by the Florida death penalty statute and the United States Constitution. These factors include the following: the race of the victim, the place in which the homicide occurred (geography), and the sex of the defendant. The imposition of the death penalty on the basis of such factors violates the eighth and fourteenth amendments to the United States Constitution and requires that Mr. Harvard's death sentence, imposed during the period in which the death penalty was being applied unconstitutionally, be vacated.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 25, at 82.

The execution of a condemned person by electrocution amounts to cruel and unusual punishment, in light of evolving standards of decency and the availability of less cruel but equally effective methods of execution.

Motion to Vacate, ¶ 26, at 85.

The Circuit Court heard argument with regard to the application for a stay of execution and the motion to vacate on Monday, August 26, 1985, in Sanford, Seminole County, Florida. At the

conclusion of the arguments, the lower court denied the motion to vacate and the stay, and directed the prosecutor to prepare an order. Notice of appeal was filed on August 26, 1985.

This appeal is brought pursuant to Rule 9.140(g), Fla.R.App.P., which sets the following standard of review:

Unless the record shows conclusively that the appellant is entitled to no relief, the order shall be reversed and the cause remanded for an evidentiary hearing.

STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS

1. The Original Trial and Sentencing

The present case involves the death of Ann Bovard on February 16, 1974. She had died as a result of a single shot from a shotgun while she had been stopped, sitting in her car at 2:00 a.m.

Ms. Bovard had divorced Mr. Harvard two months previously, after a marriage that had lasted about one and a half years, including a separation of about eight months. The separation and divorce had been emotionally difficult for both of them, with each pulling pranks and harassing one another. Nevertheless the divorce was final in December, 1973.

Mr. Harvard at the time was self-employed in a growing business as a dental cabinetmaker and equipment distributor, a line of work that Mr. Harvard had been in for a decade. It is in connection with that business that Mr. Harvard met Ralph Baggett, who was the prosecution's main witness in this case. He had taken on Baggett as a helper in the business a few weeks before the death of Ms. Bovard. Baggett was a teenage drifter with no

money and no place to stay because he had been kicked out of his house by his parents. In return for his help Mr. Harvard had given Baggett the use of a car, a place to stay and some spending money.

As will be set out below in more detail, at trial Baggett testified, in essence, that he had met Mr. Harvard on the evening of February 15th while Mr. Harvard was going into work at his shop. Mr. Harvard wanted Baggett to work, but Baggett had been drinking, distraught over a girlfriend, and was in no condition to work. So they then went to the beach to drink and, picking up six packs on the way, they sat in the car drinking at the beach next to a bar. When the bar closed, they began to drive away and as they were doing so Mr. Harvard spotted Ms. Bovard leaving the bar. He testified that they drove out of the parking lot behind Ms. Bovard and followed her down the main highway.

Eventually, Baggett said, Mr. Harvard pulled up next to her, she slowed down and pulled to the side of the road. He said that Mr. Harvard drove up next to Ms. Bovard, picked up a shotgun and pointed it out the window at her. Baggett said that then Mr. Harvard yelled, "bitch," that he (Baggett) grabbed the barrel of the gun and pulled it down, and then the gun discharged. Baggett admitted committing perjury on a number of occasions prior to trial, failing the three polygraph examinations he had taken, and giving at least four different stories, the later of which was his trial testimony. As discussed below, the remainder of the evidence at trial consisted principally of testimony concerning the acrimony and incidents growing out of the ending of the marriage.

Mr. Leonard Martin testified that he was a cabinet maker and was a business partner of Mr. Harvard whom he had known for two years. OT 110. Martin said that he had observed Mr. Harvard and the deceased argue in the past and knew they had separated because they were not getting along. OT 113. Mr. James Bertholf testified that he had observed Mr. Harvard and Ms. Bovard in a fight. OT 186. Mr. William Braithwaite testified that he had known Mr. Harvard for seven or eight months, OT 496, and that, at Mr. Harvard's request, he had followed Ms. Bovard on two separate occasions. OT 503. He also stated that he heard Mr. Harvard express a desire to see his ex-wife dead. OT 507. Braithwaite had been arrested in Tampa and brought back in chains to testify, OT 538-39, and told the prosecutor that he would say anything the prosecutor wanted, as long as they helped him with his legal problems, OT 539. Ms. Kathleen Plouffe testified that she received a threatening letter addressed to Ann Bovard. OT 583. Agent Robert Holland testified that latent fingerprints on the letter matched Mr. Harvard's prints. OT 604.

The only direct evidence presented by the prosecution as to the death of Ann Bovard was the testimony of Ralph Baggett. Baggett testified that he had first met Mr. Harvard at the Dobbs House restaurant, through Pat Bevis, Mr. Harvard's girlfriend, about a month before this incident. OT 356. He had worked for Mr. Harvard for three weeks. OT 357.

He testified that on Friday, February 15th he and Mr. Harvard worked until 3:00 p.m. OT 363. At about 9:00 p.m. he had an argument with his girlfriend at the Dobbs House and was very upset. OT 362-63. Baggett stayed there talking to his

girlfriend until about 11:30 p.m. OT 363-64. He saw Mr. Harvard leave and then he went back towards the shop. OT 364-65. Mr. Harvard caught up with him and they went and got two six packs of beer and sat in the car on Cocoa Beach, near the Sandspur Bar. OT 365. They stayed there for an hour to an hour and a half and then they left and began to follow Ms. Bovard's car back to Merritt Island. OT 367. Baggett said that before they pulled onto Citrus Boulevard, Mr. Harvard shouted at him to get into the back seat. OT 369. Baggett got into the back seat and Mr. Harvard pulled a shotgun into the front seat. OT 370. His testimony was that Ms. Bovard came to a complete stop off the side of the road, OT 372, their car was barely moving and they came up beside her about one or two feet away. OT 372, 373.

Baggett said that Mr. Harvard put the gun on the top of the door. OT 372. Baggett stated that he grabbed the gun and that a split second after his hand reached the gun, Mr. Harvard yelled "bitch" and the gun discharged. OT 370, 374. Baggett then got back into the front seat. OT 373.

Baggett admitted that he had told the police several prior inconsistent stories. The reason he lied, he said, was because he thought he had caused the gun to go off by grabbing it. OT 387. Baggett testified that he had taken three different polygraph examinations and had failed them. OT 409. He still lied under oath after failing the polygraphs. OT 410. He stated that when he and Mr. Harvard met near the cabinet shop on the night in question, Mr. Harvard had wanted to go to the shop to work but that Baggett had said he was too upset to work. OT 417, 420.

Baggett said that he was intoxicated that night. OT 399. Baggett also testified that it was the police who convinced him that he did not cause the gun to go off when he grabbed it. OT 459-63.

The defense put on no evidence in the guilt-innocence phase. OT 694. The jury returned a verdict of guilty of first degree murder. OT 890. The prosecution's case in the sentencing phase consisted of testimony about a 1969 incident in Jacksonville involving Mr. Harvard's prior wife and his children. The prosecution's first witness was Betty Ann Phillips, Mr. Harvard's first wife. OP 7. They were married in 1960 and were divorced in 1969. OP 8. In the spring of 1969, they were separated and she had begun divorce proceedings. OP 9-10. She was staying at her sister's house. OP 11. She testified that Mr. Harvard shot her at her sister's house during an argument over their children. OP 12. Mary Jane Sweat, Ms. Phillips' sister, verified the shooting incident on March 14, 1969. OP 35-36.

The defense called Lavetta LaMontagne, Mr. Harvard's sister. OP 53. She testified that Ms. Phillips had often left the children with their grandmother for days or weeks at a time just because she did not want to be bothered with them. OP 54. She testified that she saw the children right after the altercation and they were dirty, underweight, and appeared to be malnourished. OP 53-54. Ms. Phillips had only visited the children once in six or seven years. OP 55.

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