#### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILE

AUG 29 1985

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By Chief Deputy No. 11

WILLIAM LANAY HARVARD,

Appellant,

v.

case no. <u>47556</u>

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

### ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

JIM SMITH ATTORNEY GENERAL

RICHARD B. MARTELL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 125 N. Ridgewood Ave. Fourth Floor Daytona Beach, F1. 32014 (904) 252-2005

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

# TOPICAL

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

The state suggests that those isolated comments relied by Harvard at this juncture (sentencing proceeding of June 24, 1974 at 940-1, 943, 946), can simply be regarded as rhetorical excesses, which cannot be said to have tainted the entire argument such that no reasonable attorney would have delivered it in 1974. The overall tenor of the closing argu-

ment directly informed the jury of their discretion in this matter, and, it must be noted, that in telling the jury that their verdict was only advisory, counsel was not telling them anything that they had not already learned from the judge's preliminary instructions (sentencing proceeding of June 24, 1974 at 899-904). This contention is without merit.

Further, even should counsel's conduct be regarded as at all deficient, it is clear that it did not render the result below unfair or unreliable. Following defense counsel's argument, the prosecutor immediately contended that the jury's recommendation was "vitally important", in that it was persuasive to the court and was an expression of how the jurors, as members of the community, felt about a crime committed in their midst (sentencing proceeding of June 24, 1974 at 953-4). Additionally, the preliminary instructions given by the judge, as noted above, delineated for the jury their role in the capital sentencing procedure. The fact that the jury did not return immediately with a verdict, and the fact that when they did so such verdict had been arrived at by a divided vote, is indicative that the jury recognized that their verdict was vitally important.

Finally it must be recognized that the death sentence in this case is not premised upon inflamed emotion, but rather upon the finding of two valid statutory aggravating factors. The jury recommended death in this case, not due to the conduct of counsel, but rather due to that of his client. Counsel's present-day recrimination regarding his argument is en-

tirely unnecessary; whether he recognizes it or not he rendered his client effective assistance. This claim can be summarily rejected. Denial of the motion to vacate was correct and should be affirmed.

# POINT III (D)

THE ARGUMENT PERTAINING TO AL-LEGED IMPROPER CLOSING ARGUMENT BY THE PROSECUTOR IN THE 1974 SENTENCING PROCEEDING COULD AND SHOULD HAVE BEEN PRESENTED ON DIRECT APPEAL.

In his motion to vacate, Harvard contends that certain statements made by the prosecutor in his rebuttal closing argument, unobjected to by trial counsel, constitute fundamental error; such statements made in response to defense counsel's discussion of the changeability of law regarding capital sentencing, as well as his prediction that the instant law would be struck down, simply noted that that provision of the statute which set a twenty-five year cap on parole, for those sentenced to life, was likewise subject to change by a legislature (original sentencing at 953, 935). It is well recognized that issues pertaining to closing argument are matters which must be raised on direct appeal, and are improperly presented in a motion to vacate. See, Booker v. State, 441 So.2d 148 (Fla. 1983); Johnson v. State, 463 So. 2d 207 (Fla. 1985); Francois v. State, 470 So.2d 687 (Fla. 1985). Although Harvard does not acknowledge this in his motion (motion at 94), he did attempt to raise this issue on appeal following reimposition of the death sentence (see, initial brief of appellant, March 18, 1981, pages 48-50); in its opinion, Harvard v. State, 414 So.2d 1032, 1037 (Fla. 1982), the Florida Supreme Court expressly rejected Harvard's "attempt to seek review of issues in this

proceeding which could have been raised in the 1977 appeal."

This issue is improperly presented, and should not be considered on the merits.

As with so many of his claims, Harvard attempts to avoid this obstacle by rephrasing the issue as one of ineffective assistance of counsel, in reference to trial counsel's failure to object; the state maintains its position that such alternative pleading as to matters which should have been raised on appeal is improper under Hitchcock v. State, 432 So.2d 42 (Fla. 1983) and Sireci v. State, 469 So.2d 119 (Fla. 1985). In evaluating any claim of ineffectiveness, one can, pursuant to Strickland v. Washington, U.S. \_\_\_\_, 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984), look to either the prejudice or performance component; should either fail, the inquiry ends. Here, the state maintains that Harvard cannot show prejudice. The Florida Supreme Court has only reversed one death sentence on the basis of improper prosecutorial argument. In Teffeteller v. State, 439 So.2d 840 (Fla. 1983), the court found the prosecutor's argument that if the defendant were not sentenced to death he would be released in twenty-five years and kill certain specific individuals to be fundamentally improper.

The argument <u>sub judice</u> is nothing on par with that in <u>Teffeteller</u>, and counsel's failure to object to it, and preserve the issue for appeal, did not affect the result below.

The Florida Supreme Court held in <u>Paramore v. State</u>, 229 So.2d 855 (Fla. 1969), an early capital case, that it was not fundamental error to inform the jury that a life sentence was not

inviolate, in that it was common knowledge that all persons convicted of a crime were subject to parole. Here, following defense counsel's discussion of the changeability of law, the prosecutor simply observed that the twenty-five year limit on parole eligibility, imposed upon one sentenced to life, was not impervious to legislative change. He did not, in contrast to the situation in Teffeteller, invite the jury to speculate as to what Harvard would do if released at any juncture, and his remarks are simply not subject to interpretation as fundamental error. It has to be noted that comments similar to these have been found insufficient grounds for either mistrial or reversal. See, Harris v. State, 438 So. 2d 787 (Fla. 1983); Parker v. State, 456 So. 2d 436 (Fla. 1984). In Harris, the comment was to the effect that the defendant would walk out of prison, if paroled, at age 52, "as he walked out before." In Parker, the comment was to the effect that the defendant would not have been able to commit the instant murder, given his life sentences, if life had meant life. Because preservation of this issue for appeal, through timely objection at trial, would have not have benefited Harvard in any material respect, summary disposition of his claim of ineffectiveness is proper. Denial of the motion to vacate was correct and should be affirmed.

### POINT IV

DENIAL OF RELIEF AS TO APPELLANT'S CLAIMS REGARDING THE JURY INSTRUCTIONS AT THE PENALTY PHASE WAS NOT ERROR.

Appellant contends on appeal that the circuit judge was in error in denying his arguments in reference to the jury instructions at the penalty phase; each claim was presented was presented as a "merits" point, with an alternative allegation of ineffective assistance of counsel. The state maintains that all of these issues represent ones which should have been presented on direct appeal, and often unsuccessfully were, and that appellant's rephrasing of them as claims of ineffective assistance of counsel was improper. Each claim will now be considered in the order presented, in greater detail.

# POINT IV (A)

THE ARGUMENT PERTAINING TO THE PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTIONS' ALLEGED FAILURE TO INFORM THE JURY AS TO THE STATE'S BURDEN OF PROOF COULD AND SHOULD HAVE BEEN PRESENTED ON DIRECT APPEAL.

In his motion, Harvard contends that fundamental error has occurred in relation to the fact that the penalty phase jury instructions allegedly did not inform the jury as to the state's burden of proof. The Florida Supreme Court has considered this identical claim in <a href="Songer v. State">Songer v. State</a>, 419 So.2d 1044 (Fla. 1982) and <a href="Armstrong v. State">Armstrong v. State</a>, 429 So.2d 287 (Fla. 1982). In <a href="Armstrong">Armstrong</a>, the court held that the matter was not subject to consideration in a rule 3.850 motion; in <a href="Songer">Songer</a>, the court expressly rejected the contention made therein that the alleged error was fundamental.

This was an issue which was clearly available for consideration at the time of Harvard's direct appeal. Although such is not reflected in the motion (motion at 94), it is also one which Harvard did attempt to raise in his initial brief, filed in the appeal following reimposition of sentence (see, initial brief of appellant, March 18, 1981 at 39-45). In Harvard v. State, 414 So.2d 1032, 1037 (Fla. 1982), the Florida Supreme Court expressly rejected Harvard's "attempt to seek review of issues in this proceeding which could have been raised in the 1977 appeal." This claim is procedurally defaulted and improperly presented and should not be considered on the merits.

As in a number of other claims, Harvard attempts to avoid this obstacle by presenting an alternative argument, couched in terms of ineffectiveness of counsel. suggests that this is improper, pursuant to Hitchcock v. State, 432 So.2d 42 (Fla. 1983) and Sireci v State, 469 So.2d 119 (Fla. 1985). In any event, no ineffectiveness of counsel exists as a matter of law. The Florida inquiry as to ineffective assistance of counsel is comparable to that enunciated by the United States Supreme Court in Strickland v. Washington, U.S. , 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984). See, Downs v. State, 453 So.2d 1102 (Fla. 1984). It is clear, that in evaluating a claim of ineffectiveness, one can examine either the performance or prejudice component of the claims; should either fail, such claims can immediately be rejected. Here, inasmuch as it has been held that this claim does not raise fundamental error, and that the jury instructions as given were not fundamentally erroneous, see, Songer, the state contends that Harvard cannot show prejudice. Even if his counsel had objected, no relief would have been obtained. This claim does not merit further discussion. Denial of the motion to vacate was correct and should be affirmed.

### POINT IV (B)

THE ARGUMENT PERTAINING TO THE PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTIONS' ALLEGED SHIFTING OF THE BURDEN COULD AND SHOULD HAVE BEEN RAISED ON DIRECT APPEAL.

In his motion to vacate, Harvard contends that the penalty phase jury instructions were fundamentally erroneous in that, allegedly, they allowed the jury to assume the defendant had the burden to demonstrate that death was not the appropriate sentence, thus improperly shifting the burden of proof. In Zeigler v. State, 452 So.2d 537 (Fla. 1984), the Florida Supreme Court expressly held that this identical claim was one which should have been raised on direct appeal and one which was not cognizable in a motion to vacate. In Smith v. State, 457 So.2d 1380 (Fla. 1984), the court further stated that the matter did not represent a claim of fundamental error. In light of the above, the state contends that this claim is procedurally defaulted due to Harvard's failure to raise it on appeal, and should not be considered on the merits.

However, Harvard presents an alternative assertion of ineffective assistance of counsel as to this claim; the state maintains its assertion that such alternative pleading as to matters which should have been raised on appeal is improper under <a href="Hitchcock v. State">Hitchcock v. State</a>, 432 So.2d 42 (Fla. 1983) and <a href="Sireci v. State">Sireci v. State</a>, 469 So.2d 119 (Fla. 1985). In any event, as the Florida Supreme Court held in <a href="Downs v. State">Downs v. State</a>, 453 So.2d 1102 (Fla. 1984), the Florida inquiry upon this matter is com-

## POINT IV (C)

THE ARGUMENT PERTAINING TO THE PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTIONS' ALLEGED FAILURE TO INFORM THE JURY AS TO HOW TO WEIGH THE AGGRAVATING AND MITIGATING FACTORS COULD AND SHOULD HAVE BEEN PRESENTED ON DIRECT APPEAL.

In his motion to vacate, Harvard contends that the penalty phase instructions to the jury were fundamentally erroneous, in that, allegedly, they failed to inform that, even after weighing the aggravating and mitigating circumstances, they still were required to determine whether death was the appropriate penalty. This, like all other issues pertaining to jury instructions, was one which should have been raised on appeal, and Harvard's failure to do so precludes consideration of this matter on a motion to vacate. See, Armstrong v. State, 429 So.2d 287 (Fla. 1983); Thompson v. State, 410 So.2d 500 (Fla. 1982). The state finds this claim analogous to that asserted in Adams v. State, 456 So.2d 888 (Fla. 1984) and Francois v. State, 423 So.2d 357 (Fla. 1982). In the former case, the defendant urged, in a motion to vacate, that it had been error for the court to fail to instruct the jury that they could recommend life even though they found aggravating circumstances. The Florida Supreme Court found this to be an improperly presented claim, citing to McRae v. Wainwright, 439 So.2d 868 (Fla. 1983), such latter case holding that a prisoner who seeks relief in a collateral proceeding based upon a jury instruction not challenged at trial bears the burden of

proving that the instruction given affected the trial in such a way as to render the proceeding fundamentally unfair. The instruction in Adams was not fundamentally erroneous, and the state contends neither was that <u>sub judice</u>. Harvard has procedurally defaulted on this cliam.

As in his other claims, Harvard raises an alternative ground of ineffective assistance of counsel; the state responds by contending that such alternative pleading, as to matters which should have been raised on direct appeal is improper in light of Hitchcock v. State, 432 So.2d 42 (Fla. 1983) and Sireci v. State, 469 So.2d 119 (Fla. 1985). In any event, due to the lack of fundamental error, Harvard cannot prevail on this assertion. Under Strickland v. Washington, U.S. , 104 S.Ct. 2052, 80 L.Ed.2d 674 (1984), one can examine either the performance or prejudice component of an ineffectiveness claim; should either portion fail, the inquiry ends. Because the error was not fundamental, trial counsel's failure to object cannot be said to have prejudiced Harvard or to have rendered the result below unfair. It is worth noting that the Florida Supreme Court in Adams, supra, reached the identical conclusion in rejecting a claim of error in reference to a failure to instruct which the state contends is on all fours with the situation in the case at bar. Denial of the motion to vacate was correct and should be affirmed.

# POINT IV (D)

THE ARGUMENT PERTAINING TO THE PENALTY PHASE JURY INSTRUCTIONS' ALLEGED FAILURE TO INFORM THE JURY OF THE ROLE PLAYED BY MITIGATING CIRCUMSTANCES COULD AND SHOULD HAVE BEEN PRESENTED ON DIRECT APPEAL.

In his motion to vacate, Harvard asserts that fundamental error occurred in regard to the jury instructions' alleged failure to inform the jury of the role played by the mitigating circumstances. In Adams v. State, 456 So.2d 888 (Fla. 1984), the Florida Supreme Court, confronted with the identical claim, held that such matter was one which had to be raised on direct appeal, and could not be presented initially in a motion to vacate. Accordingly, given Harvard's failure to raise this issue on direct appeal, the state contends that this issue is procedurally defaulted, and should not be considered on the merits.

Further, Adams also raised his claims in the alternative as does Harvard, asserting ineffective assistance of counsel in reference to trial counsel's failure to object to the jury instructions; the state continues to maintain that this procedure of alternate pleading, alleging ineffective assistance of counsel in reference to every claim which could have been raised on appeal but was not, violates <u>Hitchcock v. State</u>, 432 So.2d 42 (Fla. 1983) and <u>Sireci v. State</u>, 469 So.2d 115 (Fla. 1985). In any event, this claim of ineffectiveness was rejected in <u>Adams</u>, on the basis of <u>Strickland v. Washington</u>,

#### POINT V

DENIAL OF APPELLANT'S CLAIM RE-GARDING THE ALLEGED DISCRIMINATORY APPLICATION OF THE DEATH PENALTY, AND HIS CLAIM THAT ELECTROCUTION CONSTITUTES CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISH-MENT, WAS NOT ERROR.

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